
 
RECREATION & COMMUNITY  
ENHANCEMENT COMMITTEE 

MEETING 
 

A G E N D A 
 

TOWN OF CHINCOTEAGUE 
 

August 9, 2011 - 5:00 P.M. – Council Chambers - Town Hall 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
AGENDA ADOPTION: 
 
 
 

 
1. Mariner’s Point Park 

 Draft Master Plan 
 

2. Chincoteague Gymnasium 
 Work Program 
 USDA Grant 

 
3. Project Report Updates 

 
4. Committee Member Comments 

 
 
ADJOURN:  
 
 
 
Next Meeting – October 11, 2011 
 

1 of 13



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
To:  Recreation & Community Enhancement Committee 
 
From:  William Neville, Director of Planning 
 
Date:  August 9, 2011 
 
Subject: Proposed Mariners Point 

 
 
 
A recommendation was made during several Committee meetings and presented to the 
Town Council in July 2011 that the overlook at the southern tip of the Island should be 
cleaned up and a master plan for future improvements should be considered.  The 
Recreation & Community Enhancement Committee has informally discussed existing 
conditions, maintenance and safety concerns and projects for future improvements to this 
area.   
 
A draft master plan for Mariners Point has been prepared to evaluate the proposed ideas 
for redevelopment of the existing Town Operations Area at Curtis Merritt Harbor, and to 
follow the model for deliberate planning and management of Town properties. 
 
The following draft master plan documents are attached for review by the Committee: 
 

• Description 
• Base Map 
• Proposed Improvements 

 
 

2 of 13



 

 

 

 

Located at the southern tip of 
Chincoteague Island, Mariners Point is 
an area of approximately 8 acres 
currently used as a municipal operations 
facility adjacent to the Curtis Merritt 
Harbor of Refuge.   The high elevation 
created by placement of dredge material 
over the years has created what is 
described as the best view in Town. 
 
The open view of Chincoteague Inlet 
and the Atlantic Ocean is a welcome 
sight for the local fishing fleet and a 
prime destination for watching rocket 
launches from Wallops Island.   
 
Proposed improvements to Mariners 
Point would include accessible trails, 
safe viewing areas, and a Watermen’s 
Memorial.  Chincoteague traditions and 
future technology will continue to be an 
important part of the visitor experience 
through the redevelopment of this land. 
 
Public access is limited due to safety 
concerns for partially dried dredge 
material and the operation of the 
commercial harbor. An interim plan is 
proposed to provide safe pedestrian 
access to the southern shoreline. 
 
 Master Plan – Description 

Mariners Point 
Town of Chincoteague, Inc 

 
August 2011 

 
 

 

 

3 of 13



 

 

 

Inventory of Existing Facilities 
Total Area:  8.85 acres   

• 2 enclosed basins used by USACE 
to pump and dry dredge spoils from 
channel projects 

• 1 former Town operations site used 
for natural materials disposal and 
burn site 

• Armored shoreline to prevent 
erosion at the south end of the 
island exposed to ocean inlet 

 
 

Master Plan – Base map 

Mariners Point 
Town of Chincoteague, Inc 

 
August 2011 

 

 

Topographic Map 

4 of 13



 

 

 

 
Projects for Future Improvements 
 

A. Destination Sign/Entry/Security 
Gate 

 Dawn to Dusk 
 No fishing from shore 
 No bonfires 

 
B. Trail 

 Control vehicle access 
 Provide accessible slope 

 
C. Mariners Memorial 

 Install lighting 
 Mound up for visibility 

 
D. Viewing Area  

 Informal open area 
 Compacted sand surface 

 
E. Safety Fencing 

 Low post and cable barrier 
 

F. Shoreline stabilization 
 Maintain and repair as 

necessary 
 

 
 
 

Master Plan – Future Improvements 

Mariners Point 
Town of Chincoteague, Inc 

 
August 2011 

 
 

A 

B 

E

  G 

F 

 

C 

D 

5 of 13



 

 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 

Town of Chincoteague Inc.
 
 
 
Date: June 29, 2011 
 
To: Recreation and Community Enhancement Committee members 
 
From: Robert Ritter 
 Town Manager 
 
RE: Plan for Old Elementary School Gym 

 
 

 
1. We need to name the Gym? 

a. Island Gym 
b. Town Gym 
c. Chincoteague Gym 
d. Old Gym 

 
2. Exterior Fix 

a. Take out old fence and post 
b. Paint fuel tank and have it anchored down 
c. Eye brows or pave entrance into gym from Smith St Ext. middle of parking area 
d. Place parking bumpers on each side of parking area (SE and NW sides) 
e. Place balliards in front of Doors of the Gym 
f. Check guttering and roof system 
g. Put in side walks to parking area 

 
3. Interior Fix 

a. empty trash, sweep and mop the floors 
b. fix all plumbing (i.e. facets, toilets, add a water fountain in area away from the 

basketball court) 
c. fix and replace all tiles that are lose ore missing 
d. Clean out the office and storage room.  
e. Make one of the rooms into a locker room 
f. Keep one room for storage and supplies 
g. Place plywood to the ceiling on all side walls 
h. Place a poly cover over the insulation on the ceiling 
i. Fix all ceiling lights  
j. Have heater system checked out by a professional 

6 of 13



k. Make sure all doors work for emergencies 
 
4. Operations 

a. Sign up sheet will be at the Town office to reserve a time for use. You must be 18 
years of age to reserve the gym 

b. Town staff will unlock the doors during working ours the police will lock the 
doors during off working ours (i.e. working ours = 8:00 am – 5:00 pm). 

 
5. Rules and regulations 

It is the intention of the town Gym to provide everyone in our community the 
opportunity to play basketball in a positive environment. We ask for your full 
cooperation in the following ways:  
a. Profanity or other aggressive behavior will not be tolerated and is subject to 

discipline and/or expulsion from the gym without warning 
b. Exit doors to the gym must not be blocked  
c. Bicycles, skates, and skateboards are not permitted in the gym 
d. No glass containers allowed in the gym 
e. All trash should be placed in the container 
f. No intoxication or alcoholic beverages allowed. 
g. No pets are permitted in the gym. 
h. Turn out lights when not in use 

7 of 13



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
To:  Recreation & Community Enhancement Committee 
 
From:  William Neville, Director of Planning 
 
Date:  August 9, 2011 
 
Subject: Project Updates 

 
 
The status of ongoing projects is updated below for Committee review and discussion. 
 
Ocean Boulevard Extended 
Town staff has applied for approval of the required wetlands permits.  Mr. Spurlock has 
been working with Robert Cole, Norfolk District COE to determine the applicable 
nationwide general permits. 
  

Next Steps: -     Apply for Joint Permit Application to Virginia DEQ for  
        approval of wetlands fill, piping of the existing drainage ditch,  
        crossing of Fowling Gut and any remediation required. 

- Prepare engineering design and cost estimate for construction 
- Work with property owners along existing Ocean Boulevard to 

discuss option for a designated bike lane to be striped on one 
side of the street 

- Work with property owners along Coach’s Lane to identify 
options for extension of the bike path to the north of Chicken 
City Road 

 
CNWR Bike Trail Extension 
FWS has received all permit approvals for the boardwalk bike trail connecting to the 
Chincoteague Museum. The first phase of construction is completed with widening both 
shoulders of Maddox Boulevard between the Circle and the Chincoteague Museum. 
 
 
 

8 of 13



Next Steps: 
- USFWS to obtain additional funding for construction of board 

walk connection 
- NPS to obtain additional funding for upgrade/replacement of 

bridge over Assateague Channel 
- Town to confirm with VDOT whether construction of a wide 

shoulder for pedestrian and bicycle safety could be completed 
with Maintenance Funds or eligible for VDOT grant funds in 
the next fiscal year. 

 
Jessie R. Watson Sr. Memorial Park 
Public Works staff  have worked closely with Master Gardeners Lisa Cannon and 
Heather Jorgenson to complete the renovation/perennial garden project.   
 

Next Steps: -     A maintenance plan is proposed with the Garden Club for the  
        flower beds.   

- Phase two improvements would include additional seating 
and/or replacement of remaining two Bradford Pear trees. 

 
New Bridge Gateway Landscaping 
Interim Maintenance of landscaping at the two Main Street corners and the new Route 
175 Bridge has been completed by Public Works staff.   
 

Next Steps:  
- Landscape plan review by Committee and approval by Town 

Council 
- Confirm with VDOT Portsmouth Office that the Town should 

take over the maintenance responsibility with the ability to use 
VDOT maintenance funds for the landscape areas 

 
 
Donald Leonard Park 
The Leonard Family has completed Phase One improvements with the assistance of a 
landscape designer to recommend plantings and improvements to the Park.  Street 
improvements for the entrances and drainage ditches in the vicinity, as well as improved 
water access for a kayak launch have been discussed informally by Town Council and 
Staff. 
 

Next Steps: -     Discuss additional uses and visitor management 
- Refine park master plan  
- Identify incremental improvements to be completed as a part of 

regular Town maintenance program 
- Full Park Master Plan to be recommended by Committee and 

approved by Town Council 
 

9 of 13



 
 

Mariners Point 
Committee members have identified the overlook area at Curtis Merritt Harbor as the 
number one priority for planning future open space and recreational opportunities in the 
Town.  Public safety, town operations, dredge spoils, additional parking, Mariners 
Memorial, and special event viewing have all been discussed. 
 

Next Steps: -     Continue communication with the Harbor Committee to  
        discuss areas of mutual interest between the committees 

- Recommend to the Town Council and the Harbor Committee 
recreational improvement projects that begin with adjustments 
to the normal Town operational plan and grading to improve 
public safety within the viewing area 

- Present a master plan document showing the proposed 
improvements and the Mariners Memorial for Town Council 
approval 

 
Downtown Main Street/Robert Reed Park 
The Main Street revitalization project, acquisition of Bridge Street right of way, purchase 
of additional land, and the construction of a fishing pier are all changes that need to be 
incorporated into the master plan for Robert Reed Downtown Park. 
 

Next Steps: -    Presentation of suggestions from the Downtown Merchants and 
        the Cultural Alliance regarding opportunities to improve and  
        manage the Downtown Park. 

- Review proposed use of the Bridge Street right of way and the 
recent land acquisition that connects to the Pavilion 

- Prepare a Park Master Plan amendment that includes the new 
properties for Town Council approval. 

10 of 13



Recreation and Community Enhancement 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

June 14, 2011 
 

Committee Members Present:    Committee Members Not Present: 
John Jester, Chairman      John H. Howard, Councilman 
Tripp Muth, Councilman   
Bob Conklin      
Cathy Plant        
Jack Van Dame       
Gene W. Taylor, Planning Commissioner 
 
Others Present: 
William Neville, Planning Director 
Robert Ritter, Town Manager 
 
Call to Order 
Chairman John Jester called the meeting to order at 5:05 PM 
 
Agenda Adoption 
Mr. Van Dame motioned, seconded by Councilman Muth to adopt the agenda.  Unanimously 
approved. 
 
1. Robert N. Reed Downtown Waterfront Park 

• Revised Master Plan 
• Application for Park Use 

 
Town Manager Ritter provided an update to the Committee on the Downtown Main Street 
Revitalization Project stated they’re waiting on VDOT to approve the plans.  He stated they were 
hoping to use half of the grant money for Bridge Street and possibly the other side of the street.  
He stated that once they get the signature on the right of way easements they will be able to 
move forward.  He explained the plans and drawings from the agenda packet.  He is working on 
a joint permit application for maintenance dredging.  He asked for suggestions from the 
Committee. 
 
Town Manager Ritter would like to get the dredging completed first and then brainstorm possible 
improvements on the new property additions to Robert Reed Park.. 
 
Town Planner Neville addressed the application for Park Use form that was included in the staff 
report.  He stated that this came about because Public Works Director Spurlock advised that one 
of the tent posts from a recent event damaged an irrigation line.  He suggested adding on the 
application front “and agree to pay the cost of any damage caused by your use of the Facility”.  
He also suggested adding on the Rules & Regulations: “#10.  Installation of tents or other 
equipment that may require anchoring must avoid damage to existing underground irrigation 
lines, grass turf, brick sidewalks, boardwalk or other park structures.  The person scheduling the 
event is responsible for the actions of vendors, including the cost of repairs if necessary.”   

11 of 13



 
There was discussion regarding a cap on the costs of repairs along with enforcement.  Mr. Van 
Dame suggested including a diagram of the irrigation lines. The Committee agreed with the 
proposed changes. 
 
2. Chincoteague Veterans Memorial Park 

• Interpretive Sign 
Town Planner Neville summarized the previous recommendation of the Committee that the 
Chincoteague Veterans Memorial Park should not be renamed.  He presented several ideas for an 
interpretive sign to tell the story of the people who donated land for the Park.  He asked for the 
Committee’s preference on how to proceed. 
 
Mr. Van Dame stated that he thought there should be something possibly giving the name and 
the dates of Town Veterans at the Park but not an in-depth history of one individual. 
 
Chairman Jester suggested a simple sign honoring all of those who donated the land for the Park. 
 
Town Planner Neville likes the concept as a visitor to hear the local stories.  He also stated that 
there could be a rotating story board in the Museum as an alternate to the Park.   
 
3. Park Improvements 

• Schedule of Maintenance/Checklist 
Town Planner Neville stated that there was a checklist created earlier in the year for inspection of 
playground equipment and park improvements at Veterans Memorial Park.  He advised that they 
have updated the list to include all of the items from 3 different communities that refer back to 
the Consumer Product Safety Handbook on Playground Safety.  He assured the Committee that 
the checklist includes all the items.  He recommended that the Committee adopt the checklist and 
begin to use it and Public Works Director Spurlock will oversee the list.  Town Planner Neville 
feels that they should begin to use the checklist and review the progress in a couple of months. 
 
There was further discussion as to the thoroughness of the checklist.  Mr. Van Dame volunteered 
to visit the site to determine additional criteria that should be adopted. 
 
4. Project Report Updates 
Town Planner Neville reported that the joint permit for the Ocean Boulevard Extended project 
has been filed with the state.  He also advised that Mr. Hank Badger with the Army Corps of 
Engineers has no objection with the crossing of Fowling Gut.  He reported that the bike trail at 
the Refuge is underway.  He stated that if they have money left over from the grant they will 
begin the elevated trail over the marsh.   
 
Chairman Jester explained the cost associated with the elevated trail. 
 
Town Planner Neville reported that the Watson Park improvements are complete.  He added that 
there may be some mulch or trimming left.  He stated that he would like to see someone adopt 
the Park and possibly put tables out there with the possibility of having Bill’s Restaurant serve 
lunch one day a week.  He advised that the Garden Club has been watering the plants.  He 

12 of 13



reported that the Public Works Department has completed weeding and mulching at the new 
bridge gateway landscape areas.  The Town is still waiting for the Landscaping Maintenance 
Agreement from VDOT.  There was discussion as to what needed to be done there.   
 
Town Planner Neville stated that the Donald Leonard Park landscaping is complete.  He was 
unsure if there would be paving at the entrance. 
 
Chairman Jester stated that he, Mr. Conklin and Public Works Director Spurlock met at the 
Curtis Merritt Harbor in the area where the Town temporarily dumps bulk items to discuss the 
possibility of a Mariners’ Memorial.  He advised that Mr. Conklin suggested naming it Mariner’s 
Point.  He also wants this area cleaned and filled in to keep others from dumping trash there.   
 
Mr. Barry Abell explained his idea for the Mariners’ Memorial and how he has been raising the 
funds.  He suggested a large white cross with brass on it. 
 
Chairman Jester feels anything would be better than the garbage.  He asked the consensus of the 
Committee so he can present it to Council. 
 
Planning Commissioner Taylor made suggestions for cleanup.   
 
Chairman Jester will discuss this matter with the Harbor Committee prior to going to Council. 
 
There was further discussion about extending the video surveillance. 
 
Town Planner Neville will name the project “Harbor Area Master Plan – Mariner’s Point”.  He 
asked if they want him to follow the same format for a Master Plan so that a document may be 
officially endorsed.   
 
The Committee agreed. 
 
5. Committee Member Comments 
There was discussion about the Downtown Revitalization and construction beginning in the Fall. 
 
Chairman Jester stated the next meeting will be August 9, 2011.   
 
Adjourn. 
Mr. Conklin motioned, seconded by Mrs. Plant to adjourn.  Unanimously approved. 

13 of 13


	MEETING AGENDA 8.9.11
	Mariners Point staff report
	Mariner's Point Description
	Mariners Point Base Map
	Mariners Point Improvements
	Plan for Old Elementary School Gym
	Project Update Memo
	RCEC Meeting Minutes.061411
	Recreation and Community Enhancement
	Committee Meeting Minutes




